“"SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees: Ida Green - President, Debra Turner - Vice President, Bonnie Hough - Clerk, Joshua Barrow,
Caroline Van Alst
Interim Superintendent. Terena Mares

Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Academy
200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, CA 94965

Thursday, January 10, 2019

Trustee Hough is participating via teleconference from the Conference Room at the Marriott Hotel,
614 Canal Street, New Orleans, LA 70130

5:00 p.m. Open Session — Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Multi-Purpose Room
5:01 p.m. Closed Session — Bayside Martin Luther King School Conference Room
6:00 p.m. Open Session — Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Multi-Purpose Room

1. OPEN SESSION — Call to Order

2, CLOSED SESSION - AGENDA

2.01 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.8 — One Case

3. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION - Depending upon completion of Closed Session items, the Governing Board
intends to convene in open Session at 6:00 p.m. to conduct the remainder of the meeting, reserving the right to
return to Closed Session at any time.

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ; 2 minutes
5. AGENDA REORGANIZATION/APPROVAL

Are there any requests from the Board to move any agenda item to a different location? 2 minutes
6. BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 10 minutes
7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 30 minutes

Because the Board has a responsibility to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient way, the following procedures shall regulate public presentations to the Board.
The Board is asking that members of the public wishing to speak fill out a form located on the counter/table, stating their name and address; the agenda item; and the topic to
be discussed. .

The Governing Board is prohibited from taking any action on any item raised in this section unless the item is specifically agenized. Members of the Governing Board may ask
a question for clarification, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting on any matter or take
action directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Governing Board members may make brief announcements or briefly report on histher own activities as
they related to school business.

State open meeting laws allow members of the public to lodge public criticism of District policies, procedures, programs, or services. However, those same laws include
specific provisions designed to protect the liberty and reputational interests of public employees by providing for the non-public hearing of complaints or charges against
employees of the District. Under these laws, it is the employee subject to complaints or charges who is provided the right to choose whether those complaints or charges will
be heard in open or closed session. It is therefore the desire of the Sausalito Marin City Schooi District that complaints against an employee be put in writing, and that when
the Board hears complaints or charges against an employee it do so in closed session unless the employee requests an open session. Consistent with the law and the opinion
of the State Attorney General's Office, please submit any complaints against an employee in writing, to the administration, in accordance with the district's complaint procedure.
This procedure is designed to allow the District to address complaints against employees while at the same time respecting their legitimate privacy rights and expectations.

8. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
9. PRESENTATIONS

10. CORRESPONDENCE ' 5 minutes
10.01 Response to Potential Conflict of Interest Allegation — School and College Legal Services

Entire board packet on www.smcsd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

REPORTS

11.01 Superintendent 30 minutes
11.02 Site Leadership - David Finnane

11.03 Willow Creek Academy

11.04 Facility Report

STANDING BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

DISCUSSION / INFORMATION ITEMS 30 minutes
13.01 Superintendent Search

13.02 Interdistrict Attendance Report

13.03 LCAP Goal #1, Student Achievement - Planned Actions and Services and Budgeted Expenditures
13.04 LCAP Goal #2, Community School, Metrics and Measureable Outcomes

CONSENT AGENDA 5 minutes
14.01 Payment of Warrants — Batches 19-20
14.02 Minutes of the December 13 and 18 Board Meetings

ACTION ITEMS - items Removed from the Consent Agenda: Any item removed from the Consent Agenda 45 minutes
may be discussed and acted upon individually

15.01 Public Hearing: California School Employees Association's (CSEA) Chapter #394 Initial Proposal for
2018 - 2019

15.02 Public Hearing: District’s Initial Proposal to the California School Employees Association (CSEA)
Chapter #394 for 2018-2019

15.03 Resolution 761 — Authorization to Sign on Behalf of the Board

15.04 Consider Approval of the 2017-2018 Audit Report

15.06 Consider Approval of the Disposal of Surplus Materials

15.06 Consider Approval of Superintendent's Goals

PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS

POLICY DEVELOPMENT
17.01 Policy Updates

FUTURE MEETINGS
18.01 The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees will be on Thursday February 14,
2018 in the Bayside Martin Luther King School Multi-Purpose Room

FUTURE TOPICS

ADJOURNMENT

Entire board packet on www.smcsd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes
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A Joint Powers Authority
serving school and college
districts throughout the
state.

5350 Skylane Boulevard
Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Tel: (707) 524-2690
Fax: (707) 578-0517
santarosa@sclscal.org
www.sclscal.org

General Counsel
Carl D. Corbin

Attorneys

Ellie R. Austin
Monica D. Batanero
Jennifer Henry
Sarah Hirschfeld-Sussman
Nancy L. Klein
Damara L. Moore
Jennifer E. Nix
Steven P. Reiner
Loren W. Soukup
Erin E. Stagg

Of Counsel

Robert J. Henry
Margaret M. Merchat
Patrick C. Wilson

SCHOOL & COLLEGE LEGAL SERVICES
OF CALIFORNIA

December 20, 2018 VIA EMAIL ONLY: tmares@smcsd.org

Terena Mares, Interim Superintendent
Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Drive

Marin City, CA 94965

Re: Response to Potential Conflict of Interest Allegation
Dear Ms. Mares:

I am writing you regarding the allegation there is a potential conflict of interest
in having School & College Legal Services (“SCLS”) attorney Loren Soukup
advise the Sausalito Marin City School District regarding the matter of the
Attorney General’s findings of violations of anti-discrimination laws for -
operating Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Academy in Marin City. My
understanding is Willow Creek Academy Board Member, Jeff Knowles,
alleged at the District Board meeting on December 18, 2018, there would be a
potential conflict of interest if Ms. Soukup represented the District regarding
this matter because SCLS “Of Counsel” attorney Robert Henry has been in the
past affiliated with the Marin County Office of Education (“MCOE”).

As a preliminary matter, SCLS is a duly established joint powers of authority
that was formed to provide high quality legal and labor relations services for
community colleges, school districts, and county offices of education at a
reasonable cost. SCLS is a public agency with a governing board comprised
of individuals from community colleges, school districts, and county offices of
education and is most specifically not a profit seeking private law firm.

Upon reviewing this matter, I am not aware of any actual or potential conflict
as defined in State Bar of California Rule 1.7. “Conflict of Interest: Current
Clients.” While our office has provided some very limited legal services to
MCOE, SCLS has not provided any legal services to MCOE regarding this
matter. Moreover, Mr. Henry provides only very limited assistance to SCLS in
his “Of Counsel” position. Specifically, Mr. Henry has only provided 4.5
hours of services on behalf of SCLS since July 1, 2018, and Mr. Henry only
provided 34.8 hours of service on behalf of SCLS for the entire 2017-2018
school year from July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018. Any work product and
client files that may have been completed by Mr. Henry for MCOE (or any
other client) outside of his role at SCLS is not maintained at SCLS, is not
available at SCLS, and has not been shared with anyone else employed at
SCLS. In order to avoid even the appearance of impropriety, Mr. Henry will be
excluded from any participation at SCLS regarding the matter of the Attorney
General’s findings of violations of anti-discrimination laws for operating
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Terena Mares, Interim Superintendent

Re: Response to Potential Conflict of Interest Allegation
December 20, 2018

Page 2

Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Academy in Marin City. This should also satisfy any concern
related to State Bar of California Rule 1.6 “Confidential Information of a Client.”

Please contact me if you would like to discuss this matter further.

Sincerely,

Carl D. Corbin
General Counsel

C: Loren Soukup, Senior Associate General Counsel, SCLS
Robert Henry, Of Counsel, SCLS
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 13.01 Date: January 10, 2019

Correspondence H Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

=

ltem Requires Board Action: [ ] ltem is for Information Only:

ltem: Superintendent Search

Background: The consulting firm which performed the superintendent search in 2016 provided a
two-year guarantee, whereby if the selected superintendent did not remain in the position for at least
two years, the firm would perform an additional superintendent search for the district. At this time, Bill
Huyett, with McPherson & Jacobson, has been contacted and will work with Board President Ida
Green to initiate the next search.

Fiscal Impact: No cost for search

Recommendation: Information Only.
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 13.02 Date: January 10, 2019
Correspondence ] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

N [ I =

ltem Requires Board Action: [ ] Item is for Information Only:

Item: Interdistrict Attendance Report

Background: At the request of the board, this report provides information on the district's current
Interdistrict attendance agreements. Also included with this report is a copy of the current Board
Policy (BP) and Administrative Regulation (AR) on Interdistrict Attendance. BP .and AR 5117 was not
included with the series of board policy updates provided through the California School Boards
Association (CSBA), and which the board will review during 2019.

In summary, the district’s policy on Interdistrict transfers states the superintendent may allow
interdistrict attendance requests on a case-by-case basis to meet individual student needs or may
deny based on overcrowding or limited district resources.

For the 2018-19 school year, the district has received the following number of Interdistrict Attendance
Requests.

Type of Transfers | Transfers g;?es;egs Total A-trtgﬁiﬁtuxﬁg?ut
Transfer Quantity | Approved Denied Other y Transfers T ransferg On File
Request by SMC by SMC o Approved

District
Requests to 8 7 y N/A 7 5
Transfer In
Requests to N/A
Transfer Out 20 20 0 2 18
Transfers




As provided through Education Code 46600, the governing boards of two or more school districts may
enter into an agreement, for a term not to exceed five school years, for the interdistrict attendance of
pupils who are residents of the school districts. In 2015-16, as in previous years, school districts in
Marin County signed a five-year agreement allowing for the interdistrict attendance of pupils. The
provisions of the agreement are as follows and attached to this memo. Each participating district
signed through district board presidents and approved by individual district governing boards:

e Education Code 46600(a) provides that “The governing boards of two or more school districts
may enter into an agreement, for a term not to exceed five school years, for the interdistrict
attendance of pupils who are residents of the districts.”

e Education Code 46600(a) further provides that “The agreement shall stipulate the terms and
conditions under which interdistrict attendance shall be permitted or denied.”

e Assembly Bill No. 2444 amended Education Code 46600 so as to allow the transfer agreement
to contain standards for reapplication and revocation of interdistrict transfers agreed to by the
district of residence and the district of attendance.

e The undersigned school districts seek to serve the students in their districts in an efficient and
collaborative matter.

o Pursuant to Assembly Bill No. 2444, the Governing Boards of the districts listed below hereby
agree that when interdistrict transfer requests are approved the reapplication and revocation of
such permits shall be subject to the interdistrict transfer provisions set forth in Board Policy and
Regulations from each of the other districts.

e This agreement will take effect July 1, 2015 for a five-year term. On or about May of each year
districts will review the agreement for purposes of extending the term for an additional year.

Additional provisions of board policy also requires an annual report to the board by May of each year.
Under Education Code Section 48300, otherwise known as District of Choice law, each school district
of choice shall keep an accounting of all requests made for transfers that shall include, but are not

limited to, all of the following:

(A) The number of requests granted, denied, or withdrawn. In the case of denied requests, the records
shall indicate the reasons for the denials.

(B) The number of pupils transferred out of the school district of choice.

(C) The number of pupils transferred into the school district of choice pursuant to this article.

(D) The race, ethnicity, gender, self-reported socioeconomic status, eligibility for free or reduced-price
meals, and the school district of residence of each of the pupils described in subparagraphs (B) and

(C).

(E) The number of pupils described in subparagraphs (B) and (C) who are classified as English
learners or identified as individuals with exceptional needs, as defined in Section 56026.

Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact of an Interdistrict Transfer varies, and depends on the net number of
students transferring in and out of the district. Currently, of the total Interdistrict Transfers approved,
both in an out (30), transfers in represent 40% (7), and transfers out represent 60% (18).

Recommendation: Direct administration to provide yearly reports each May, per board policy
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltems: 13.03 and 13.04 Date: January 10, 2019

Correspondence [l ConsentAgenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

0 =

ltem Requires Board Action: [_] Item is for Information Only: [X]

ltem: LCAP Goal #1, Student Achievement - Planned Actions and Services and Budgeted
Expenditures, and LCAP Goal #2, Community School, Metrics and Measureable Outcomes

Background: During the Fall of 2018, the board requested regular reviews of each of the district's
LCAP Goals, Metrics, Actions and Budgets throughout the year to better understand the components
and measurements of its LCAP. The board therefore adopted a timeline in order to do so. To date,
the board has received an in depth review of the Metrics and Annual Expected Measurable Outcomes
for Goal #1, Student Achievement. During subsequent board meetings the board expressed an
interest in delegating the more in-depth review of its LCAP Goals to a board subcommittee. At this
time, a subcommittee has not yet formed. In order to stay on track with the review timeline
administration will provide a high level overview during the January board meeting, with the
expectation that the in-depth review will be shared with the pending LCAP board subcommittee.

Note: this review process does not replace the input and engagement with other community groups
such as the School Site Council, English Learner Advisory Committee and the Community Advisory
Committee.

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Recommendation: Information Only.
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Payment of Warrants
1/10 , 2019

Attached warrants include:

Batch 19 Fund 01 in the amount of $257,894.03
Batch 19 Fund 13 in the amount of $1,597.31
Batch 19 Fund 14 in the amount of $661.97
Batch 20 Fund 01 in the amount of $79,001.44
Batch 20 Fund 13 in the amount of $1,763.61

Prepared by Vida Moattar
Sausalito Marin City School District Business Office
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MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415)491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date /(l//g\,/)%

District Name  SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment
of vendor paymentsinthetotal of § D L O, A § 2.

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
Ol /] 252 89y 03
/> /9 ] $9r. 3

/4 /9 | Lel, 97

Authorized Signature

Marin County Offi f Education Busi F No. 119
Rrin Sounty OTfice of Education BusineseForm o 118 10 TIPS TUDENT AT A TIME



APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/14/2018
BATCH: 0019 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REG# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

20219570 070935/ CINTAS CORPORATION

P0-190003 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 4013445889
WARRANT TOTAL

20219571 002749/ CROWN TROPHY

PV-190232 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 29724
WARRANT TOTAL

20219572 000701/ HYDREX PEST CONTROL

P0-190014 1. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 11/18 WCA
2. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 11/18 BMLK
WARRANT TOTAL

20219573 002345/ KONE INC.

P0-190006 2. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 12/18 Maint.
WARRANT TOTAL

20219574 071000/ OSHALLA MARCUS

PV-190229 01-0000-0-5840.00-1453-1010-104-000-000 100104
WARRANT TOTAL

20219575 000580/ MARIN COUNTY SHERIFF DEPART.

PV-190230 01-0000-0-5821.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 10913
WARRANT TOTAL

20219576 000047/ MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DST

P0-190010 1. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 10-12/18 WCA
2. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 10-12/18 BMIK
* WARRANT TOTAL

20219577 000899/ MICHAEL'S TRANSPORTATION SERV

P0-190112 1. 01-0000-0-5819.00-1335-1010-104-000-000 107138
WARRANT TOTAL

20219578 000056/ PBI

P0-190015 2. 01-0000-0-5960.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 3102653408 balance
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12/13/18 PAGE 35

37.79
$37.79

150.00

85.00
$235.00

136.43
$136.43

1,350.00
$1.350.00

100.00
$100.00

4,666.42

1,896.88
$6,563.30

1.458.00
$1,458.00

436.61



12/13/18 PAGE 36

60.03
$496.64

6.480.00
$6.480.00

240,543.00

9.00
$240,552.00

$257,894.03*
$.00%
$.00%

APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/14/2018
BATCH: 0019 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQG# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
1. 01-0000-0-5960.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 3102653408
WARRANT TOTAL
20219579 070406/ SILYCO
P0-190016 1. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7706-700-000-000 NOV2018
WARRANT TOTAL
20219580 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
PV-190234 01-0000-0-8096.00-0000-9200-103-000-000 December 2018 in Tieu & $9 bal
01-0000-0-8096.00-0000-9200-103-000-000 December 2018 in lieu & $9 bal
WARRANT TOTAL
*&% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 11 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 11 TOTAL AMOUNT:
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12/13/18 PAGE 37

320.50
$320.50

118.75
$118.75

985.06
$985.06

173.00
$173.00

APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/14/2018
BATCH: 0019 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20219581 071066/ EARL'S ORGANIC PRODUCE
PV-190238 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 829696
WARRANT TOTAL
20219582 070815/ MARIN CHEESE COMPANY
PV-190237 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 558461
WARRANT TOTAL
20219583 070816/ UNFI
PV-190235 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 10959958- 004
WARRANT TOTAL
20219584 070799/ VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PV-190236 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1265759
WARRANT TOTAL
**% FUND TOTALS *%* TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL EFT GENERATED:

4
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 4
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$1,597.31*



APY250  L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

BATCH: 0019 GENERAL FUND

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/14/2018

FUND : 14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

DEPOSIT TYPE

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

12/13/18 PAGE 38

20219585 070184/ DOWNING HEATING INC.

PV-190233

14-0000-0-5600.00-0000-8110-103-000-000

14-0000-0-5600.00-0000-8110-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

20219586 002632/ MARKET ENGINEERING

PV-190231

w#xk FUND  TOTALS ***

#%%  BATCH TOTALS ***

*%% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

Printed: 12/14/2018 09:42:45

14-0000-0-5600.00-0000-8110-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

TOTAL NUMBER OF -CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

mNoonr

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 17

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 17
TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 17
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 17
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59614, 59636

59614, 59636

62590

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

277.50

384.47
$661.97

132.00
$132.00

$793.97*
$.00%
$.00%
$793.97*

$260,285.31*
$.00*
$.00*
$260,285.31%

$260,285.31%
$.00%
$.00%
$260,285.31%



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415)491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS -

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date /Q\//f // g

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments inthe total of $ 80, YL ,0

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
Oj Do Y4 ool Gy
L Y
/> ally LXL3.L)

e

<7 & -
Authorized Signature = 9., Z;/c_:;

Marin County Office of Educatimé Btlx iness Form No. 1
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APY250  L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/21/2018
BATCH: 0020 GENERAL FUND
FUND @ 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT  VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REG# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

20220644 071014/ ACCO BRANDS USA

P0-190117 1. 01-0000-0-4400.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 2795798
2. 01-0000-0-4400.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 2795798 - final
WARRANT TOTAL

20220645 070329/ AT&T CALNET 3

P0-190001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 12/18 partial
WARRANT TOTAL

20220646 071088/ LAUREN BUNTING

PV-190240 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-006 Classroom snacks
WARRANT TOTAL

20220647 070984/ ESGI

P0-190128 1. 01-0000-0-5300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 21455
WARRANT TOTAL

20220648 002601/ FIRST STUDENT INC.

P0-190125 1. 01-0000-0-5819.00-1335-1010-104-000-000 9270315
WARRANT TOTAL

20220649 002270/ FISHMAN SUPPLY €O.

PO-190009 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8210-104-000-000 1166383
WARRANT TOTAL

20220650 071028/ JAMAL GRAHAM

PV-190246 01'0000-0~5840.00'0000-2700-104~000-000 Uniform Taundry
WARRANT TOTAL

20220651 071092/ WOLF GUTSCHER

PV-190247 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8110-103-000-000 Maintenance supplies
01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 Maintenance supplies
WARRANT TOTAL

20220652 071024/ HERC RENTALS

PV-190239 01-0000-0-5605.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 30468155-001
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935.55

935.00
$1,870.55

806.74
$806.74

29.42
$29.42

368.00
$368.00

503.18
$503.18

551.80
$551.80

125.07
$125.07

181.04

181.03
$362.07

132.42



APY250

DISTRICT:
BATCH:
FUND

WARRANT

20220653

20220654

20220655

20220656

20220657

20220658

20220659

20220660

20220661

L.00.05

047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/21/2018

0020 GENERAL FUND

: 01

VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)

GENERAL FUND

DEPOSIT TYPE

REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

071091/

070624/

070988/

000045/

070470/

071080/

071100/ .

071079/

071012/

- WARRANT TOTAL
ANDREA KEENAN

PV-190245 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-136

WARRANT TOTAL
LARKSPUR CORTE MADERA SCHOOL

P0-190093 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-103-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
VANESSA LYONS

P0-190080 1. 01-9471-0-5800.00-1110-1010-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
MARIN COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUC

PV-190241 01-0000-0-5840.00-1110-1010-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
MARIN RESOURCE RECOVERY CENTER

P0-190007 1. 01-0000-0-5550.00-0000-8200-103-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

MOMENTUM IN TEACHING LLC

P0-190027 1. 01-0000-0-5240.00-1110-2140-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

PCD

PV-190242 01-8150-0-4400.00-0000-8110-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

RYLAND CONSULTING

P0-190121 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7300-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
SENECA
PV-190243 01-0000-0-5840.00-1110-1030-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

17 of 130

ABA NUM

ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

Nat. Board Snacks

32 Gutscher 11/18

12/18 Garden Work

190408

12/18

411b-reissue & 445

6510

2200

HEI-NOV 18

12/20/18 PAGE 58

$132.42

30.64
$30.64

9,058.95
$9.058.95

1,530.00
$1,530.00

1,050.00
$1,050.00

67.50
$67.50

8,646.00
$8,646.00

2,378.61
$2,378.61

6,120.00
$6,120.00

106.67
$106.67



APY250

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education 12/20/18 PAGE 59

4,299.80
$4,299.80

444.31

444 .31
$888.62

40,018.64
$40,018.64

$79,001.44*
$.00%
$.00%

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/21/2018
BATCH: 0020 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT  VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20220662 001531/ STAPLES
P0-190124 1. 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-133 Suppliies - Kelly
WARRANT TOTAL
20220663 070879/ SUNNY HILLS SERVICES
P0-190103 1. 01-6500-0-5833.00-5750-1185-700-000-000 November 2018
WARRANT TOTAL
20220664 070525/ US BANCORP EQUIP. FINANCE INC
P0-190012 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 12/18 DO
2. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 12/18 BMLK
WARRANT TOTAL
20220665 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
PV-190244 01-0000-0-7299.00-0000-9200-103-000-000 Bal. BAE 7-10/18, BAE 11/18
WARRANT TOTAL
*%% FUND TOTALS #*%* TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 22 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
’ TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 22 TOTAL AMOUNT:
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APYZ250 - L.00.05

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

12/20/18 PAGE 60

278.50
$278.50

135.94
$135.94

160.50
$160.50

283.20
$283.20

317.67
$317.67

587.80
$537.80

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/21/2018
BATCH: 0020 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20220666 071066/ EARL'S ORGANIC PRODUCE
PV-190248 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 830904
WARRANT TOTAL
20220667 070841/ ECOLAB
P0-190045 1. 13-5310-0-5605.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1828045
WARRANT TOTAL
20220668 070815/ MARIN CHEESE COMPANY
PV-190249 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 559000
WARRANT TOTAL
20220669 070827/ MARIN SUN FARMS
PV-190250 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 439514
WARRANT TOTAL
20220670 070973/ ROCK ISLAND REFRIGERATED
PV-190251 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1183659
WARRANT TOTAL
20220671 070816/ UNFI
PV-190252 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 10972274-003
WARRANT TOTAL
*%% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

kik

#*% DISTRICT TOTALS w#*

BATCH TOTALS #%%

TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

OO,

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 28

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 28 TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 28

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 28 TOTAL AMOUNT:

Printed: 12/20/2018 10:48:36
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$1,763.61%
$.00%
$.00%
$1,763.61%

$80,765.05%
$.00%
$.00%
$80,765.05%

$80,765.05%
$.00%
$.00%
$80,765.05%



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD MEETING MINUTES
December 13, 2018
ATTENDANCE
Board Members Present: Joshua Barrow, Ida Green, Bonnie Hough, Debra Turner, Caroline Van Alst
Interim Superintendent: Terena Mares

Prior to the start of the board meting, new trustee Bonnie Hough and returning trustees Barrow and Green
took the oath of office. Interim Superintendent Mares administered the oath.

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Hough led the pledge of allegiance.

REORGANIZATION OF AGENDA
Trustee Van Alst said that concerns have been raised by the County Superintendent that she has a common

law conflict of interest in decisions that affect the relationship between the district and the charter school,
arising from the fact that she has a child attending the charter school. She continued: Although | do not believe
that a conflict exists, given the nature of the allegations and the ongoing investigation of the district by the
Attorney General, | am recusing myself from several items on the agenda: Correspondence - 9.01, 9.02, Interim
Budget -14.02. She also asked that item 13.02 - Minutes of November 8 and November 27, 2018, be removed
from the consent agenda.

Superintendent Mares asked that presenters for items 12.01, 14.01 and 14.07 be moved to the Presentation
category at the top of the agenda.

M/s/c Turner/Hough to Approve the Agenda as Re-organized

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

Election of Board President
M/s/c Green/Van Alst to Elect Trustee Green as Board President

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

Election of Board Vice President
Trustee Hough nominated trustee Turner to be vice president.
M/s/c Hough/Green to Elect Trustee Turner as Board Vice President

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

20 of 130



Election of Board Clerk
M/s/c Green/Turner to Elect Trustee Hough as Board Clerk

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

Appointment of Board Secretary
Interim Superintendent Terena Mares was appointed Board Secretary.

Appointment of Representative to the Marin County School Boards Association {(MCSBA)
Trustee Hough was appointed Board representative to MCSBA.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
Trustee Green asked for a moment of silence to honor Mrs. Spells, who taught at the Bayside School in
Sausalito many years ago.

Trustee Turner said that she was happy to see so many members of the community in the audience and looked
forward to making our district a place of opportunities for our students.

Trustee Hough said she is looking forward to working for the district and all of our students.
Trustee Van Alst congratulated all the returning and newly elected board members.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Alison Niederer said that the budget that is before the Board threatens to cut $1 million in funding for Willow
Creek Academy. The Board should find a fiscally responsible way to fairly fund education for all students. She
asked for transparency regarding inter-district transfers at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy and an accounting of the
number of those students and the cost of their education. She asked for monthly updates with factual
information from the district to promote transparency.

Regan Fulton reiterated Ms. Niederer’s concerns about inter-district students at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy.

Bettie Hodges said the Hannah Project has begun a program for middle school students who are not currently
enrolled in any after-school programs, focusing on leadership and homework assistance. In addition, the
Hannah Project is rolling out a parent training program at BMLK.

David Suto said the primary duty of the district is to provide a satisfactory level of education for the children.
At the moment, large numbers of children at both schools are not receiving an adequate education. He said
that the District should look at what it needs to spend to provide such an education and ask 94965 residents to
provide those resources. In the meantime, we should consider an interim MOU with Willow Creek Academy
which allows flexibility in changing our structure and the financing of the District.

Marilyn Mackel said the Board owes a fiduciary duty of loyalty, care and obedience to the District and cannot
continue to provide funding to the charter school at the expense of the District school. Regarding the materials
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in storage in the Annex building, she said that all items should be sorted and inventoried and offered to
community organizations if teachers and staff have no further use for them.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Glass Door

Superintendent Mares said that 14 volunteers from Glass Door will assist with the beginning of inventorying
and organizing items in the annex and that a list of items will be brought to the Board before being considered
surplus. Mares shared that Glass Door has been a very good neighbor to our District and we are grateful for
their help.

Sausalito Marin City Electorate
Superintendent Mares said that we are proud to have had an 80.4% turnout during the recent election. This
demonstrates our community’s commitment to our schools and children

Jennifer Conway congratulated the new Board and said that she is prepared to work with its members on
behalf of all the children.

Mindfulness

Chelsea True, who has been leading the mindfulness program funded by Kaiser at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy,
said that mindfulness means paying attention with kindness and it can stop the progression of trauma. She
explained that she began her teaching by supporting the teachers and demonstrating the practice. She
continued: it has been beautiful to see the children learn how to get back to their “self”. The response from
the children here has been very powerful as they learn to stay with their pain. She then led the audience in a
short mindfulness practice.

Social Emotional Learning Assessments

Principal Finnane introduced Amber Fretwell from Seneca who gave an overview of the social-emotional
screening program created by her organization. The presentation showed that 109 students were assessed in
November. Of these, 18.5% had a low likelihood of needing social-emotional support, 22.7% had a moderate
likelihood and 58.8% a high possibility. Mr. Finnane said that these results are borne out by his experience with
children and parents at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy. Based on this data, he proposed to share more information
with the Board on how to address the academic and social emotional needs of the students as well as
capitalize on their strengths.

Marin City Health & Wellness Clinic Proposal

Jayvon Muhammad said that the clinic has purchased 100 Phillips Drive and plans to build a 4- story building to
include a clinic, a preschool and 20 apartments. Ms. Muhammad said that the clinic would like to lease a
portion of the District property abutting 100 Phillips and develop about 25 parking spaces which would be
shared with the school. The Board asked to address concerns for tying up land if lease moves forward. Ms.
Muhammad also announced that she is leaving California for a new post in Louisiana and introduced Ms.
Khailyah Jordan as the interim CEO.

Trustee Turner said that the district would benefit by everything that the clinic plans to do. Trustee Barrow
said that it might be premature to give a full green light to the project at this point. Trustee Van Alst cautioned
against long term encumbering of district property.
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Kahaya Adams said she is concerned parents with children currently at he Learning Center have not heard
what will happen to those children who attend school or after school care there while the building is going on.

M/s/c Hough/Van Alst to Approve Preliminary Support for the Marin City Health & Wellness Clinic Proposal
Conditional on a Yet-to-be-Developed Lease Agreement

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

Varidesk Donation

Drew Amoroso, president of StandUp Kids, said the mission of his organization is to have every student gain
access to a stand-up desk in the next 10 years. He said that children are sitting for about 12 vyears a day,
increasing their risk of chronic iliness. Since 2014, 90K students across the country have begun using a stand-up
desk. The Varidesks would be given to Bayside MLK Jr. Academy at no cost.

Trustee Barrow asked if a warranty is offered. Superintendent Mares said that she was assured that any
broken desk would be replaced at no charge. Trustee Barrow requested to memorialize arrangements for
Veridesk support in the future.

Trustee Green asked if the same offer could be made for Willow Creek Academy. Mr. Amoroso said that his
organization hopes to be able to raise enough money to do so.

M/s/c Turner/Barrow to Approve the Varidesk Donation

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None

At 8:38 p.m., the Board took a break. The meeting was reconvened at 8:47 p.m.
At 8:48 p.m., Trustee Van Alst left the meeting.

CORRESPONDENCE

Superintendent Mares said that the California Attorney General has sent a letter announcing the conclusion of
his office’s investigation of the District. The Board will be meeting to discuss a response to the letter during a
special meeting next week.

Kurt Weinsheimer, president of the WCA Board, said there is now increased awareness about education in our
district. Mr. Weinsheimer suggested a joint board meeting between the two boards to establish long term

planning. He asked the Board to take this into consideration.

Superintendent Mares said that joint board meetings are legal and permissible. Typically there are not
convened to act on any item but to start a dialogue.

At 8:57 p.m. Trustee Van Alst returned to the meeting.
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REPORTS
Superintendent

- District Website Preview — Ms. Mares said that this will go live after the Christmas break.

- Board Workshops — The superintendent said these are critically important due to the challenging issues to
address, including the serious nature of the charges by the AG. Ms. Mares recommended a series of two hour
workshops that could culminate in a retreat; a recommendation will be brought to the Board in January.

- Community Communications — Ms. Mares shared the intent to work with one or two board members to
develop a series of communications to the community.

- 2018 California Dashboard — Superintendent Mares shared a video explaining the function of the Dashboard
then showed how to extract data fro a particular school from the website.

Site Leadership

Principal Finnane acknowledged Bettie Hodges for the new work that she is doing for our middle schoolers.
Mr. Finnane invited community members to come to school on December 21 to celebrate the publication of
our students’ information writing. The Measures of Progress assessment is taking place in September,
December and March to allow us to make adjustments in teaching and meet the needs of students based on
the results. The first school site council meeting occurred this week. We have a lot of work to do to meet our
goals in English language learner services. A meeting is scheduled for 1/15 to talk to English Language Learner
parents.

Willow Creek Academy

Speaking on behalf of head of school Tara Seekins, Marijke Smit said the first trimester ended on November 16
and report cards have been mailed out. MAP testing is underway for 3-8 graders. Huckleberry Youth Programs
is conducting healthy relationship and sexual health classes for the middle school. Two teachers, Adrienne
Thompson and Jennifer Carrade, have passed their National Board examinations.

Update on WCA Prop 39 Facilities Request
Superintendent said that the district has performed a review and there is nothing to report at this time.

Overview of LCAP State Priorities
Superintendent Mares said that following a request from the Board, she has provided the priorities for each of
the district’s LCAP goals in the board packet.

Working Committees

Ms. Mares said that a list of existing committees has been provided in the packet. The Community Advisory
Committee meets monthly, the Transformation Team meets quarterly, and the School Site Council met for first
time this past week. The English Language Advisory Committee is being formed.

CONSENT AGENDA

Roll Call Van Alst/Hough to Approve the Following Consent Agenda item:
Payment of Warrants — Batches 15-18

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst

Noes: None
Absent: None
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Minutes of the November 8 and November 27, 2018 Board Meetings

Trustee Van Alst said that she would like to record the following correction to the minutes of the November 8
meeting: She did not recuse herself from items 11.02 and 11.03, Review of LCAP Goal #1 and Review of the
Local Control and Accountability Plan Local Indicators and participated in the discussion.

M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to Approve the Minutes of the November 8 and 27, 2018 Board Meetings
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Van Alst

Abstain: Hough
Absent: None

At 9:49 p.m., trustee Van Alst left the meeting.

2018-2019 First Interim Budget

Superintendent Mares gave an overview of the budget. The deficit has been reduced from S667K to $581K,
despite a certificated salary increase. With the expiration of the MOU with Willow Creek Academy in 2019, the
District anticipates a reduction in salary expenditures as we will no longer have special education staff on that
campus. Ms. Mares said that the statutorily required payments to WCA for the next two fiscal years are
included in the budget’s multi-year projections. She emphasized that the letter from the Attorney General may
likely impact our future financial relationship with the charter school.

Trustee Barrow said that in looking at the Local Control and Accountability Plan provisions for the next two
years, we should re-examine the budget in the areas of foreign language instruction, the community school
plan and deferred maintenance. He said we should also look again at our debt service and District overhead
payments.

Jeff Knowles, a WCA Board member, said that he would like to see the District close the budget gap without
taking funds away from Willow Creek Academy. He said that he appreciates the sentiments expressed by the
Board about supporting both schools. He cited the letter from Dr. VanderMolen included in the Board packet
about best practices for allocating resources to both schools.

Trustee Hough said that she would encourage the formation of a budget committee as soon as possible. She
added that in the meantime, she would be reluctant to make any changes to the current budget.

Marilyn Mackel said the facts of the case cited in the letter by Dr. VanderMolen are not correctly interpreted.

M/s/c Turner/Hough to Approve the 2018-2019 First Interim Budget

Ayes: Green, Hough, Turner
Noes: Barrow
Absent: Van Alst

Board Policies Update Plan
Superintendent Mares presented a recommended schedule for adopting the updated policies over time.
Trustees asked that policies regarding the budget and immigration be reviewed as a priority.

M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to Approve the Board Policies Update Plan while Prioritizing Budget and Immigration
Policies
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Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None

Board Committees
Superintendent Mares said that her list of committees is a first pass at what membership might look like for
each committee. She asked that the Board consider forming an ad hoc committee to determine membership
of each committee.

M/s/c Van Alst/Barrow to Approve the Creation of an Ad Hoc Committee (Hough and Van Alst) to Formulate
Future Board Committees and to Disband by June 30, 2019

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None

Facilities Needs Assessment Proposal

Superintendent Mares recommended approval of the plan proposed by Greystone West as outlined in the
Board meeting packet.

M/s/c Van Alst/Hough to Approve the Facilities Needs Assessment Proposal

Aves: Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Oppose: Barrow
Noes: None

Absent: None

At 10:37 p.m., trustee Hough left the meeting.

Title I LEP Local Plan Update

Superintendent Mares said that this update shows the Department of Education how we are complying with
the Every Child Succeeds Act. Mares reported that at present, the District is not doing enough in parental
outreach and this fact is included in the update.

Nijs/c Barrow/ Van Aist to Approve the Title Ili LEP Local Pian Update

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: Hough

At 10:54 p.m., trustee Hough returned to the meeting.

Superintendent’s Goals
This item was tabled until next the next Board meeting.

2018-2019 Governance Calendar
M/s/c Barrow/Turner to Approve the 2018-2019 Governance Calendar

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None
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Surplus Equipment Disposition
M/s/c Turner/Hough to Approve the Surplus of Equipment and Notify WCA of Available Surplus Materials

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None

Resignation — Jonnette Newton
Superintendent Mares said that the District has run out of options for obtaining a waiver of the music
credential requirement for Ms. Newton.

Marilyn Mackel said that it would be difficult to find a music teacher capable of teaching the variety of
instruments that Ms. Newton teaches and asked that the District try to find an exception to the music
credential regulation.

M/s/c Barrow/Van Alst to Accept the Resignation of Jonnette Newton

Ayes: Barrow, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Abstain: Green

Absent: None

Community School Manager Job Description

Trustee Turner suggested enhancing the grant writing and fundraising aspects of the job. Ms. Mackel, speaking
for Bettie Hodges, said the job description should include community partnerships, grant writing and
sponsorships.

Superintendent Mares agreed to bring back an amended job description.

ADJOURNMENT

M/s/c /Van Alst/Barrow to Adjourn at 11:40 p.m.
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None

Signature/Date

Title
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES

December 18, 2018
ATTENDANCE
Board Members Present: Joshua Barrow, Ida Green, Bonnie Hough, Debra Turner, Caroline Van Alst
Interim Superintendent: Terena Mares

The meeting was called to order at 8:07 a.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Van Alst led the pledge of allegiance.

REORGANIZATION OF AGENDA

M/s/c Hough/Van Alst to approve the agenda

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: None

CORRESPONDENCE

Letter from the Office of California Attorney General in the Matter of the Investigation of Sausalito Marin
City School District

Willow Creek Academy Letter re: 12.11.18 California Attorney General Letter

Jamie Whittington, a community member, said that while Willow Creek Academy serves the majority of
children in the District, it is the systematic elimination of education services at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy which
caused an exodus out of that school. The letter from the Attorney General has the force of law behind it and
discriminatory practices in the District must end.

Melanie Meharchand said it is important for Willow Creek Academy to be at the table in discussions with the
Attorney General. 80% of students in the District chose not to stay at BMLK, she told the Board.

Marilyn Mackel said that currently 100% of white students attend WCA — that is a clear violation of the law.
BMLK is segregated because of the lack of oversight of the Board.

Approval of Addendum to the Interim Superintendent Services Contract

Ms. Mares said to provide clarity, the addendum removes the exclusion related to the pending investigation of
the Attorney General. Itis important for the superintendent to participate in the discussion with the Attorney
General. The exclusions in the original contract were specifically for LCAP and AB1200 — for this reason the
Marin County Office of Education has engaged independent consultants to work on those matters.

Trustee Van Alst said that the process going forward is that after the December 21 meeting with the Attorney
General, his office will propose a settlement or stipulated judgment.
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Jeff Knowles of the WCA Board said that the Brown Act requires that the proposed addendum be part of the
packet. Therefore, the notice should be corrected. On the substance, he said that because the Marin County
Office of Education has oversight authority over this Board and is connected directly with the investigation by
the Fiscal Crisis & Management Assistance Team, Ms. Mares is occupying two conflicting positions.

Joan Cox said she has concerns about the noticing of the meeting. If the notice was inadequate, any action
would be rescinded. She said that on its face, it would appear that Ms. Mares has divided loyalties.

Loren Soukop of School & College Legal Services said that in her legal opinion, the agenda notice did not need
more detail. She continued: This matter was brought before the Board to ensure transparency. As discussions
with the Attorney General progress, counsel will continue to evaluate the situation and if there is any
recommendation that directly involves the Marin County Office of Education, we will review Ms. Mares’s
involvement.

Lisa Mori of Fagen, Freidman & Fulfrost said that the agenda notice is technically in compliance but concerns
remain. However, there are remedies under the Brown Act and the Board has the ability to cure and correct.

Superintendent Mares said that she has been involved in the district for past three years and is a resident of
Sausalito. She continued: | take my integrity very seriously. Mary Jane Burke is my employer but thatis only a
job and does not override my integrity. If there is any conflict, | will recuse myself. It is difficult to anticipate
what will be disclosed on December 21. . ‘

M/s/c Turner/Hough to Approve Addendum to the Interim Superintendent Services Contract

Aye's: Green, Hough, Turner
Noes: None
Abstain: Barrow, Van Alst

Response to the California Attorney General’s Request to Meet with the District on December 21,2018
Trustee Green announced that she will not ask for a motion or a vote on this item. Under advice from counsel
if the board voted to name two members of the board to attend the meeting with the AG, it could constitute a
board created committee and therefore be subject to the Brown Act. Green shared she will not be able to
attend the meeting and is naming Debra Turner and Bonnie Hough to represent the district.

Allie Behr, a parent at WCA, requested that in the spirit of collaboration, leadership from WCA be included in
the meeting.

Peter Van Meter said that the perception is that the Board is not balanced therefore it would be good to have
a member of WCA in the room, even if it is in an informal capacity.

Jeff Knowles said WCA should have a seat at the table in the meeting with the AG. The other consideration is

continuity. There are two Board members, Barrow and Van Alst, who have served as Board presidents and
been involved with the AG discussions. It would be helpful to have one of them participate.

29 of 130



Trustee Van Alst said the primary concern is continuity. She continued: We are reversing course on that and if
there is a possibility of appointing trustee Barrow, we should do so.

Trustee Green said that this is only a preliminary meeting and that she is asking Bonnie Hough to attend as
someone with a legal background who has stated that she wants to be consensus builder and as Vice President
she is asking Trustee Turner to participate.

Trustee Van Alst said that she would like her dissent from trustee Green’s recommendation to be recorded.

Assignment of Legal Counsel in the Matter of the Investigation of Sausalito Marin City School District
Superintendent Mares recommended that the Board choose Schoo! & College Legal Services as lead counsel
for the AG discussions. She said that per usual practice, Lisa Mori of Fagen Friedman & Fuifrost will continue to
share her knowledge of past legal matters with School & College Legal Services (SCLS).

Trustee Van Alst said that it would be good to have Lisa Mori continue to participate in the discussions with the
AG. She said that she has concerns about the employment of Bob Henry, as he has been employed by the
Marin County Office of Education.

Loren Soukup said that there is not an issue with information being provided to our office by Fagen Friedman
& Fulfrost to adequately represent the Board. There will be some overlap between that office and ours in the
beginning. If we are chosen as the District’s firm, we will make sure that we are up to speed, she told the
Board. Soukup shared that her firm would be willing to provide a letter clarifying Mr. Henry’s “Of Counsel”
position with SCLS is without conflict.

Lisa Mori said that she is not privy to any facts or opinions from the AG and does not feel that there is a special
reason for her presence at the meeting. If there is a transition, | pledge to make it as smooth as possible, she
told the Board.

M/s/c Hough/Turner to Assign School & College Legal Services as Legal Counsel in the Matter of the
Investigation of Sausalito Marin City School District and have Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost Represented at the
Meeting with the Attorney General

Ayes: Green, Hough, Turner
Noes: None

Abstain: Barrow, Van Alst
Absent: None

ADJOURNMENT

M/s/c Barrow/Van Alst to Adjourn at 10:21 a.m.
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Hough, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: None
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GOLDEN GATE CSEA CHAPTER #394

\ECEIVE]

DEC 14 2oss])

DATE: August 20, 2018 .
TO: Board of Trustees
Terena Mares, Superintendent
FROM: CSEA Chapter #394 Negotiations Committee
SUBJECT: Contract Negotiations for Successor Collective Bargaining Agreement

CSEA is submitting the following articles and proposals for our successor collective bargaining
agreement for the 2018-2019 years with the Sausalito-Marin City School District.

Article II: Check Off and Organizational Security
e CSEA is interested in modifying the language to comply with the recent Janus v.
AFSCMA Supreme Court decision.

Article VI: Pay and Allowances
e CSEA is interested in a fair and equitable salary increase for all classified employees.

Article VIII: Health and Welfare Benefits
e CSEA is interested in an increase in the district’s contribution for benefits.

Work Calendars:
o CSEA is interested in negotiating work calendars for all classified bargaining unit

positions for the 2019-2020 school year.

We look forward to a mutually positiv/e;_ and respectful negotiations process.

Jeff Mcenaughton
President
CSEA Chapter #394

Jeff McNaughton Julius Holtzclaw  Flora Sanchez Anita Fowler

President Vice President  Secretary Treasurer
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 15.02 Date: January 10, 2019

Correspondence [l Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

NOORROOO00

ltem Requires Board Action: [X] Item is for Information Only: [ ]

ltem: 2018-19 District Initial Proposal - CSEA

Background: In December 2018, the California School Employees Association (CSEA), Chapter
#394 submitted its initial proposal to negotiate the successor collective bargaining agreement for the
2018-19 year. Following receipt of CSEA’s initial proposal, the contract provides the district shall
sunshine its initial proposal. The enclosed proposal satisfies this requirement. Following the Public
Hearing, the proposal should be referred to the Interim Superintendent to begin the meet and
negotiate process.

Fiscal Impact: Depends on settlement

Recommendation: Refer to the Interim Superintendent to begin the meet and negotiate process.
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2018-2019 Initial Proposal from the
Sausalito Marin City School District

To the

California School Employees Association, Chapter #394

ARTICLE VI

PAY AND ALLOWANCES

The salary schedule for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 shall remain in
effect from Jjuly 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.

ARTICLE VIII

HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

The health and welfare benefits for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018
shall remain in effect from July 1, 2018 through june 30, 2019.

ARTICLE VII

TRANSFERS

Openings

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE 2016-2019 CONTRACT WILL REMAIN IN EFFECT.

34 of 130



BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
SUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SAUSALITO, CALIFORNIA

Resolution No. 761

Effective January 11 to June 30, 2019, Vida Moattar is authorized to sign on behalf of the
Sausalito Marin City School District:

Revolving Checks
(2) Signatures required - Terena Mares, Vida Moattar

The Board of Trustees of the Sausalito Marin City School District adopted the foregoing
Resolution on the 10th day of January 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Trusfees

Clerk, Board of Trustees
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®

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sausalito Marin City School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Sausalito Marin City School District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Sausalito Marin City School District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the financial statements, in 2018 Sausalito Marin City School District adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Qur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes
in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of
District contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial staternents. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Sausalito Marin City School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the
table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, which is required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
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statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2018 on our
consideration of Sausalito Marin City School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Sausalito Marin City
School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sausalito Marin City School District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(%@@Aﬁ Clavoceatlo

San Diego, California
December 14, 2018
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INTRODUCTION
Our discussion and analysis of Sausalito Marin City School District’s (District) financial performance provides an

overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. It should be read in conjunction
with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P The District’s total net position was $1,263,661 at June 30, 2018. This was a decrease of $1,045,315 from the
P
prior year after restaternent.

¥ Overall revenues were $6,746,630 which were exceeded by expenses of $7,791,945.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Components of the Financials Section

Management's N . Required
. 3 . Basic Financial 1
Discussion & Supplementary
: Statements .
Analysis Information
Government-Wide Fund Financial Notes to the
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements

Su'mmary < > Detail
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

This annual report consists of three parts - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive overview
of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial
information from different perspectives:

P Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

P Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more detail. The
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

¥ Governmental Funds provide a detailed short-ferm view that helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs.

»  Fiduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or trustee of the funds, such as
Associated Student Bodies and pension funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary
information that further explain and support the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government's assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is one
way to measure the District’s financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. All of the District's basic

services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District’s net position was $1,263,661 at June 30, 2018, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount, $(3,091,713)
was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and

enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day operations.

Governmental Activities

2018 2017 Net Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 4,202,771 $ 5,718,390 $ (1,515,619)
Capital assets 20,719,430 21,497,938 (778,508)
Total Assets 24,922,201 27,216,328 (2,294,127)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,411,365 2,059,133 352,232
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 1,378,405 1,392,862 (14,457)
Long-term liabilities 23,831,456 24,479,137 (647,681)
Total Liabilities 25,209,861 25,871,999 (662,138)
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 860,044 773,507 86,537
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,381,761 1,948,012 433,749
Restricted 1,973,613 3,165,804 (1,192,191)
Unrestricted » (3,091,713) (2,483,861) (607,852)
Total Net Position $ 1,263,661 $ 2,629955 $ (1,366,294)
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)

Changes in Net Position

The results of this year’s operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. The table
below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges slightly, so you can see our total revenues and

expenses.
Governmental Activities
2018 2017 Net Change
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 1,303 § 679 % 624
Operating grants and contributions 1,105,169 1,059,642 45,527
General revenues '
Property taxes 4,188,187 3,875,745 312,442
Unrestricted federal and state aid 1,066,220 1,341,529 (275,309)
Other 385,751 1,773,872 (1,388,121)
Total Revenues 6,746,630 8,051,467 (1,304,837)
EXPENSES
Instruction : 3,437,498 3,272,346 165,152
Instruction-related services . 1,040,825 793,859 246,966
Pupil services 534,460 480,915 53,545
General administration 703,062 982,302 (279,240)
Plant services 690,974 776,384 (85,410)
Ancillary and community services - 5,000 (5,000)
Debt service 730,702 734,853 (4,151}
Other outgo 654,424 736,219 (81,795)
Total Expenses 7,791,945 7,781,878 10,067
Change in net position (1,045,315) 269,589 (1,314,904)
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated* 2,308,976 2,360,366 (51,390)
Net Position - Ending $ 1,263,661 $ 2,629,955 $ (1,366,294)

* Beginning Net Position was restated for the 2018 yearonly

The cost of all our governmental activities this year was $7,791,945 (refer to the table above). The amount that our
taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through taxes was only $4,188,187 because the cost was paid by
other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position (continued)
In the table below, we have presented the net cost of each of the District’s functions. Net cost shows the financial

burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows our
citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function.

Net Cost of Services

2018 2017

Instruction $ 2,780,539 $ 2,667,350
Instruction-related services 941,155 730,943
Pupil services 366,675 261,085
General administration 673,163 958,788
Plant services 690,974 776,384
Ancillary and community services - 5,000
Debt service 730,702 734,853
Transfers to other agencies 502,265 587,154

Total Expenses $ 6,685,473 $ 6,721,557

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $3,427,330, which is less than last
year’s ending fund balance of $4,861,746. The District’s General Fund had $220,847 less in operating revenues than
expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018 The District’s County School Facilities Fund had $3,420 more in
operating revenues than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018. The District’s Special Reserve Fund for
Capital Outlay Projects had $182,218 less in operating revenues than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018.
The District’s Bond Interest and Redemption Fund $39,567 more in operating revenues than expenditures for the
year ended June 30, 2018. The District’s Debt Service Fund had $918,182 less in operating revenues than expenditures
for the year ended June 30, 2018.

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2017-2018

During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval on
aregular basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In addition,
the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim, and Second
Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current budget based
on State and local financial information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
By the end of 2017-2018 the District had invested $20,719,430 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Governmental Activities

2018 2017 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land $ 948,870 $ 948,870 $ -
Construction in progress - 229,922 (229,922)

Land improvements 2,270,855 2,270,855 -

Buildings & improvements 27,379,948 26,931,687 448,261

Furniture & equipment 601,861 601,861 -
Accumulated depreciation (10,482,104) (9,485,257) (996,847)
Total Capital Assets $ 20,719,430 $ 21,497,938 $ (778,508)

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the District had $23,831,456 in long-term debt, a decrease of 2.65% from last year — as shown in the table
below. (More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the financial
statements.)

Governmental Activities
2018 2017 Net Change
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total general obligation bonds $ 16236201 $ 16,401,199 $  (164,998)
Total certificates of participation 3,295,000 3,390,000 (95,000)
Capital leases - 1,000,000 (1,000,000)
Early retirement incentive 139,767 183,339 (43,572)

Compensated absences 13,787 11,031 2,756

Total OPEB liability* 367,336 53,991 313,345

Net pension liability 4,109,410 3,743,147 366,263
Less: current portion of long-term debt (330,045) (303,570) (26,475)
Total Long-term Liabilities $ 23,831,456 $ 24,479,137 $  (647,681)

*Total OPEB liability for 2017 was restated in order to record the District’s total OPEB liability in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 which supersedes GASB Statement No. 45 for the year ended
June 30, 2018.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances
that could affect its future financial health.

The State’s economy continues to be strong but a new governor could change the fiscal policy for the funding of
public education, within the boundaries of Proposition 98. Past fiscal allocations had included higher than expected
funding but on-going funding may not be as strong. The UCLA Anderson Forecast (June 2018) noted that the “era
of ultra-low interest rates has passed and the economy is at full employment,” which creates difficulty sustaining
continued growth at the rate recently experienced. And, according to the California Legislative Analyst's Office,
there are concerns about a possible mild recession.

Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF). The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student
achievement to state funding levels. The LCFF provides a per pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is
augmented by supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English
language learners and foster youth. The 2018-19 adopted State Budget fully funded the LCFF funding gap two years
ahead of schedule.

Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring include: (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability measurements
to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California Longitudinal Pupil
Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit requirements.

The District participates in state employee pensions plans, PERS and STRS, and both are underfunded. The District’s
proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2018. The amount of
the liability is material to the financial position of the District. To address the underfunding issues, the pension plans
continue to raise employer rates in future years and the increased costs are significant.

Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-district
transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values. Losses in enrollment will cause a school district to lose

operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District Office, Sausalito
Marin City School District, 200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, California 94965.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,725,625
Accounts receivable 458,100
Prepaid expenses 19,046
Capital assets, not depreciated 948,870
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 19,770,560
Total Assets 24,922,201
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,217,833
Deferred amount on refunding 1,193,532
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,411,365
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities 1,048,360
Long-term liabilities, current portion 330,045
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion 23,831,456
Total Liabilities 25,209,861
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 860,044
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 860,044
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,381,761
Restricted:
Capital projects 1,676,515
Debt service 225,726
Educational programs 71,366
All others 6
Unrestricted (3,091,713)
Total Net Position $ 1,263,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Instruction $ 3437498 § - % 656,959 $ (2,780,539)
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 168,126 - 57,594 (110,532)
Instructional library, media, and technology 44,805 - 825 (43,980)
School site administration 827,894 - 41,251 (786,643)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 13,374 - 3,014 (10,360)
Food services 221,938 1,303 53,554 (167,081)
All other pupil services 299,148 - 109,914 (189,234)
General administration
Centralized data processing 73,590 - - (73,590)
All other general administration 629,472 - 29,899 (599,573)
Plant services 690,974 - - (690,974)
Interest on long-term debt 730,702 - - (730,702)
Other outgo 654,424 - 152,159 (502,265)
Total Governmental Activities $ 7,791,945 § 1,303 $ 1,105,169 (6,685,473)
General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 3,443,695
Property taxes, levied for debt service 744,492
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 1,066,220
Interest and investment earnings 40,165
Miscellaneous 345,586
Subtotai, General Revenue 5,640,158
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,045,315}
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 2,308,976
Net Position - Ending $ 1,263,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018
Special Reserve Non-Major Total
County School  Fund for Capital  Bond Interest & Gover tal Gover tal
General Fund Facilities Fund  Outlay Projects Redemption Fund Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1431319 $ 363,080 § 1,400,457 $ 497400 5 1,220 $ 32,149 § 3,725,625
Accounts receivable 445,754 - - - - 12,346 458,100
Due from other funds 162,056 - 51,342 - - - 213,398
Prepaid expenditures 19,046 - - - - - 19,046
Total Assets S 2,058,175 § 363,080 $ 1,451,799 $ 497,400 $ 1220 § 44495 $ 4,416,169
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 768173 $ - % -3 -8 -8 7268 $ 775,441
Due to other funds 51,342 138,386 - - - 23,670 213,398
Total Liabilities 819,515 138,386 - ) - - 30,938 988,839
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 23,546 - - - - 40 23,586
Restricted 71,366 224,694 1,451,799 497,400 1,220 53 2,246,532
Committed - - - - - 13464 13464
Unassigned 1,143,748 - - - - - 1,143,748
Total Fund Balances 1,238,660 224,694 1,451,799 497,400 1,220 13,557 3,427,330
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances  § 2,058175 § 363,080 $ 1,451,799 § 497400 3 1,220 $ 44,495 § 4,416,169
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital assets:

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net
position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated
depreciation:

Capital assets % 31,201,534
Accumulated depreciation (10,482,104)

Deferred amount on refunding:
In governmental funds, the net effect of refunding bonds is recognized when debt

is issued, whereas this amount is deferred and amortized in the government-
wide financial statements:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the
period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of
activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional
liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the period was:

Long-term labilities:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of

net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-

term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:
Total general obligation bonds $ 16,236,201
Total certificates of participation 3,295,000
Early retirement incentive 139,767
Compensated absences 13,787
Total OPEB liability 367,336
Net pension liability 4,109,410

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to
pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the
statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to
pensions are reported.
Deferred cutflows of resources related to pensions $ 1,217,833
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (860,044)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration
Instructional library, media, and technology

School site administration
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
Allother pupil services
General administration
Centralized data processing
Allother general administration
Plant services
Facilities acquisition and maintenance
Transfers to other agencies
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Daficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Special Reserve Non-Major Total
County School  Fund forCapital  Bond Interest & { 1
General Fund Facilities Fund _ Outlay Projects Redemption Fund Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
$ 4479275 3 - 8 -3 - % - 25000 $ 4504275
314,949 - - - - 50,536 365,485
373,868 - - 3,085 - 3274 380,227
719,092 3.420 14414 744,088 81,818 7,784 1570616
5,887,184 3420 14,414 747,173 81818 86,594 6820,603
2613455 - - - - - 2,613,455
165,254 - - - - - 165,254
44805 - - - - - 44805
805,095 - - - - - 805,095
10,797 - - - - - 10,797
558 - - - - 211,240 211,798
322231 - - - - - 322,231
73,590 - - - - - 73590
647,863 - - - - - 647,863
553,170 - - - - 31510 584,680
218,339 - - - - - 218,339
652,874 - - - - - 652,874
- - 95,000 150,000 1,000,000 - 1,245,000
- - 101,632 557,606 - - 659,238
6,108,031 - 196,632 707,606 1,000,000 242,750 8,255,019
(220,847) 3420 (182,218) 39,567 (918,182) {156,156} (1,434, 416)
138,386 - 252,399 - 55,766 156,330 602,881
{108,729) (138,386) (55,766) - - - {602,881)
(270,343) (138,386) 196,633 - 55,766 156,330 -
(491,190) (134,966) 14,415 39567 {862,416) 174 {1,434,416)
1,729 850 359,660 1,437,384 457,833 863636 13,383 4861,746
5 1,238,660 $ 224,694 $ 1451799 § 497400 $ 1220 § 13557 3% 3427330
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (1434,416)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different

from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:
In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in
the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of
capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the

period is:
Expenditures for capital outlay: $ 218,339
Depreciation expense: (996,847) (778,508)
Debt service:

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures.

In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as

reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-

term debt were: 1,245,000

Deferred amounts on refunding:
In governmental funds, deferred amounts on refunding are recognized in the period
they areincurred. In the government-wide statements, the deferred amounts on
refunding are amortized over the life of the debt. The net effect of the deferred
amounts on refunding during the period was: (47,741)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that it

becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less
matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was: (40,271)

Compensated absences:
In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid
during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are
measured by the amount earned. The difference between compensated absences

paid and compensated absences earned, was: (2,756)

(continued on following page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):
In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer OPEB
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB expenses
and actual employer OPEB contributions was:

Pensions:
In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized w hen employer contributions
are made, in the government-wide statement of activities, pension costs are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual-basis
pension costs and employer contributions was:

Other liabilities not normally liquidated with current financial resources:
In the government-wide statements, expenses must be accrued in connection with
any liabilities incurred during the period that are not expected to be liquidated with
current financial resources. Examples include special termination benefits such as
retirement incentives financed over time, and structured legal settlements. This

year, expenses incurred for such obligations were:

Amortization of debt issuance premium or discount:
In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium
or discount is recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in
the period it is incurred. In the government-wide statements, the premium or
discount is amortized over the life of the debt. Amortization of premium or
discount for the period is:

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018
Agency Fund
Warrant/Pass-
through Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 98,576
Total Assets $ 98,576
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups $ 98,576
Total Liabilities $ 98,576

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Sausalito Marin City School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with
the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA).

The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to
grades K-8 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The
primary government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate
from the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities.

B. Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The District is financially accountable for the Sausalito District Financing
Corporation (the “Corporation”) and therefor the Corporation meets the reporting entity definition.
Accordingly, the financial activities of the Corporation have been included in the financial statements of the
District.

For Financial presentation purposed, the Corporation’s financial activity has been blended. The financial activity
of the Corporation is included in the combined, with the financial data of the District. The financial activity of
the Corporation is included in the Corporation Debt Service Fund and to Corporation Acquisition Fund, and the
certificates of participation issued by the Corporation are reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government (the District). These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue,
and other non-exchange transactions.

Government-Wide Statements (continued)

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with
a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and
expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds and
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category ~ governmental and fiduciary — are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities
are typically tax-supported and include education of pupils, operation of food service and child development
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all activities
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minimum number of
funds principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason
to account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund.

County School Facilities Fund: This fund is established pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.43 to receive
apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1A), the 2002 State School Facilities Fund
(Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 55) authorized by the State Allocation Board
for new school facility construction, modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the
Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.).

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects: This fund exists primarily to provide for the accumulation of
General Fund moneys for capital outlay purposes (Education Code Section 42840).
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The proceeds
from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the District. Any
premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the District's Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the county treasurer from taxes
levied by the county auditor-controller.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used for the accumnulation of resources for and the retirement of principal and
interest on general long-term debt.

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds:

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093). The Cafeteria Special
Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for
the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-17587). In
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585
(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited in
this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this fund
to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582 and
17583).
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

Capital Projects Fund for Blended Component Units: This fund is used to account for capital projects
financed by Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts and similar entities that are considered blended
component units of the District under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units: This fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Districts and similar entities that are considered blended component units of the District under generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between trust
and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of management
involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.

Warrant/Pass-Through Fund: This fund exists primarily to account separately for amounts collected from
employees for federal taxes, state taxes, transfers to credit unions, and other contributions.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
The net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on its use are either externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

Governmental Funds
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenueis recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current period or
within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California school districts
and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement grants and corrections
to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for school districts as
collectible within one year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus (continued)

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available” criteria
for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet
and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also
recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also include cash
with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the
program Sponsor.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
the individual inventory items are requisitioned. Inventories are valued at historical cost and consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition value as of the date received. The District
maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined in GASB
Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. All reported capital assets, except
for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 14-36 years
Furniture and Equipment 10-40 years
Vehicles 5-20 years

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as "Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities
columns of the statement of net position.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental
funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events
such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with
expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the employees who
have accumulated leave are paid.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment probable;
however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when
the employee retires.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined by an independent actuary. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Period  July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over
time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and
are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source of gain
orloss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.
All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected remaining service lives of all
members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the beginning of the measurement
period.

Premiums and Discounts

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method.

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then.

In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.

This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined
benefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form.
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets
held for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must
be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent to
that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance, committed
fund balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original constraints are
removed or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the
Governing Board.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the
governing body and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance are not
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the assignment
need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to the issuance
of the financial statements.
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NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position (continued)

Fund Balance (continued)

Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or eliminating
amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

F. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to
the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. Interfund transfers are
eliminated in the governmental activities columns of the statement of activities.

G. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

H. Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year
to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at
the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major
object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes of the budget,
on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted
accounting principles.
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NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

L

Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County Auditor-Controller
bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 75 - In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard’s primary objective is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensio3ns. The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has implemented GASB Statement
No. 75 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard’s
primary objective is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. The District has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 85 — In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This standard’s primary
objective is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements. This statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other
postemployment benefits [OPEB]). The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The
District has implemented GASB Statement No. 85 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard’s primary objective
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
The District has not determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 88 — In April 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt,
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This standard’s primary objective is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and
direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information
related to debt. The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The District has not
determined the impact on the financial statements.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Funds
Investment in county treasury $ 3,719,839 3 98,576
Cash with fiscal agent 1,246 -
Cash in revolving fund 4,540 -
Total cash and investments $ 3,725,625 $ 98,576

B. Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage
obligations; and the County Investment Pool.

Investment in County Treasury - The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Marin County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed
by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function
of the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The
committee membership includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-Controller, Chief Administrative
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the
amortized cost basis.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
C. General Authorizations

Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table below
identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage of Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County
Treasury. The District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with a fair value of
approximately $3,818,521 and an amortized book value of $3,818,415. The average weighted maturity for this
pool is 211 days.

E. CreditRisk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The

investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2018, the pooled investments in
the County Treasury were required to be rated.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

F. Custodial Credit Risk —~ Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30,
2018, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

G. Fair Value

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the circumstances,
which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable available
information indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances specific
to the District are not available to other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Marin County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input
levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions

and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Uncategorized
Investment in county treasury $ 3,818,521
Total fair market value of investinents $ 3,818,521
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following;:

Federal Government
Categorical aid

State Government
Apportionment
Categorical aid
Lottery

Local Government
Other local sources

Total

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: -

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings & improvements
Furniture & equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements
Buildings & improvements
Furniture & equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Activities
11,498 % - $ 11,498
174,990 - 174,990
126,158 12,346 138,504
3,389 - 3,389
129,719 - 129,719
445,754 $ 12,346 $ 458,100
Balance Balance
July 01, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
$ 948,870 $ - - % 948,870
229,922 - 229,922 -
1,178,792 - 229,922 948,870
2,270,855 - - 2,270,855
26,931,687 448,261 - 27,379,948
601,861 - - 601,861
29,804,403 448,261 - 30,252,664
1,337,380 73,831 - 1,411,211
7,874,940 876,678 - 8,751,618
272,937 46,338 - 319,275
9,485,257 996,847 - 10,482,104
$ 21,497,938 % (548,586) % 229922 % 20,719,430
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation Expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was allocated to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction

Instructional supervision and administration

School site administration
Home-to-school transportation

All other general administration

Plant services
Total

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due From/Due To)

$ 906,652

4,782

4,245
2,577

667

77,924
$ 996,847

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Due From Other Funds
Special Reserve
Fund for Capital
Due To Other Funds General Fund  Outlay Projects Total

General Fund $ -8 51342 % 51,342
County School Facilities Fund 138,386 138,386
Non-Major Governmental Funds 23,670 - 23,670
Totai Due From Other Funds $ 162,056 $ 51,342 § 213,398
General Fund due to the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects for the final 2017-18 COP payment. $ 51,342
Cafeteria Fund due to the General Fund for a contribution. 23,670
County School Facilities Fund due to the General Fund for repayments of funds used for portable building project. 138,386
Total $ 213,398
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JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

B. Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers In
Special Reserve Non-Major
Fund for Capital Governmental
Interfund Transfers Out General Fund  Outlay Projects Debt Service Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ -8 252,399 % - $ 156,330 $ 408,729
County School Facilities Fund 138,386 - - - 138,386
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects - - 55,766 - 55,766
Total Interfund Transfers $ 138,386 § 252,399 $ 55,766 § 156,330 $ 602,881
General Fund transfer to the Cafeteria Fund for expenditures. % 156,330
General Fund transfer to the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects for construction. 252,399
County School Facilities Fund transfer to the General Fund for expenditures. 138,386
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects transfer to the Debt Service Fund for debt payment. 55,766
Total $ 602,881
NOTE 6 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:
Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds District-Wide Activities
Payroll $ 40,960 $ 4,655 $ - $ 45,615
Vendors payable 688,502 1,006 - 689,508
Unmatured interest - - 272,919 272,919
Other liabilities 38,711 1,607 - 40,318
Total $ 768,173 $ 7,268 % 272919 $ 1,048,360
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Restated
Balance Balance Balance Due
July 01, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 In One Year
Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds $ 16,025,000 $ - 8 150,000 $ 15,875,000 $ 175,000
Unamortized premium 376,199 - 14,998 361,201 14,998
Total general obligation bonds 16,401,199 - 164,998 16,236,201 189,998
Certificates of participation 3,390,000 - 95,000 3,295,000 95,000
Capital leases 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - -
Early retirement incentive 183,339 - 43,572 139,767 45,047
Compensated absences 11,031 2,756 - 13,787 -
Total OPEB liability 374,970 - 7,634 367336 -
Net pension liability 3,743,147 366,263 - 4,109,410 -
Total $ 25,103,686 $ 369,019 $ 1,311,204 § 24,161,501 $ 330,045

e Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.

e Payments on certificates of participation are made in the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects.

¢ Payments for capital leases are made in the Debt Service Fund.

e Payments for the early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund.

e Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major
Governmental Funds.

A. Compensated Absences

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2018 amounted to $13,787. This amount is included
as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

B. Certificates of Participation

On February 12, 2012, the Sausalito School District Financing Corporation issued Certificates of Participation
amounting to $3,675,000 payable in annual installments to provide financing for the MLK Jr. Academy Classroom
Construction Project. At June 30, 2018, the principal outstanding was $3,390,000. The annual requirements to
amortize the certificates of participation outstanding at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 95,000 $ 99,650 § 194,650
2020 95,000 98,510 193,510
2021 100,000 97,180 197,180
2022 100,000 95,480 195,480
2023 100,000 93,480 193,480
2024 - 2028 545,000 427,657 972,657
2029 - 2033 630,000 343,900 973,900
2034 - 2038 750,000 233,350 983,350
2039 - 2043 880,000 94,500 974,500
Total $ 3,295,000 $ 1,583,707 $ 4,878,707
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

C. General Obligation Bonds

In the November 2004 election, the citizens of the District approved the issuance and sale of general obligation
bonds to finance the construction, improvement, equipping and furnishing of various capital facilities of the
District. Under such voters” authorization, there have been two bond issuances (Series 2006A and Series 2006B)
which have been refunded in 2015 with terms summarized as follows:

Bonds Bonds
Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Date Rate Issue July 01, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
2015 Refunding Bonds ~ 1/27/2015  8/1/2042 2.00%-5.00% $16,510,000 $ 16,025,000 $ -8 150,000 $ 15,875,000
$ 16,025,000 $ - 8 150,000 $ 15,875,000

The annual requirements to amortize these bonds, as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 175,000 $ 555,356 % 730,356
2020 200,000 551,856 751,856
2021 220,000 545,856 765,856
2022 250,000 539,256 789,256
2023 280,000 529,257 809,257
2024 - 2028 1,915,000 2,447,881 4,362,881
2029 - 2033 3,000,000 1,923,381 4,923,381
2034 - 2038 4,190,000 1,361,812 5,551,812
2039 - 2043 5,645,000 594,000 6,239,000
Total $ 15,875,000 $ 9,048,655 $ 24,923,655

Debt service payments are made from property tax levy authorized by the voters.

D. Capital Leases

On December 1, 2002 the District entered into a $1,000,000 lease agreement to finance the remodel of its existing
school facilities and update technology systems. The agreement requires the District make fifteen (15) annual
payments of $55,766 to a sinking fund maintained by US Bank. The sum of the annual payments plus interest
earned on the sinking fund balance are expected to be sufficient to make a single $1,000,000 lease payment on
December 19, 2017 and pay-off the entire lease balance at that time. The lease does not include a prepayment
option. The agreement provides for title to pass upon the expiration of the lease. At June 30, 2018, the lease had
been paid off.
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

E. Early Retirement Incentives

The District offered an early retirement incentive to benefit to eligible employees through the Public Agency
Retirement System (PARS) in 2015-16. The inventive was offered to certificated non-management employees as
of March 8, 2016, who were at least age fifty-five (55) with five or more years of service with the District or at
least age fifty (50) with thirty (30) or more years of service with the District as of June 30, 2016. Participants
receive a monthly benefit over a specified number of years. Three employees accepted the early retirement
incentive offer in the fiscal year 2015-16.

The District is required to make five annual payments of $49,778. The liability reported is the present value of
future expected cash flows using a 3.33% discount rate. Future payments are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 45,047 % 4731 $ 49,778
2020 46,572 3,206 49,778
2021 48,148 1,630 49,778
Total $ 139,767 $ 9,567 $ 149,334

F. Other Postemployment Benefits

The District’s restated beginning total OPEB liability was $374,970 and decreased by $7,634 during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The ending total OPEB liability at June 30, 2018 was $367,336. See Note 9 for additional information
regarding the total OPEB liability.

G. Net Pension Liability

The District’s beginning net pension liability was $3,743,147 and increased by $366,263 during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2018 was $4,109,410. See Note 10 for additional
information regarding the net pension liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 8 - FUND BALANCES

Fund balances were composed of the following elements at June 30, 2018:

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
County School  Fund for Capital  Bond Interest & Gover tal  Gover tal
General Fund  Facilities Fund  Outlay Projects Redemption Fund Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
Non-spendable
Revolving cash $ 4,500 % -5 - § -5 - § 40 s 4,540
Prepaid expenditures 19,046 - - - - - 19,046
Total non-spendable 23,546 - - - - 40 23,586
Restricted
Educational programs 71,366 - - - - - 71,366
Capital projects - 224,694 1,451,799 - - 2 1,676,515
Debt service - - - 497,400 1,220 25 498,645
All others - - - - - 6 6
Total restricted 71,366 224,694 1,451,799 497,400 1,220 53 2,246,532
Committed
Other commitments - - - . - 13,464 13,464
Total committed - - - - - 13,464 13,464
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties 325,839 - - - - - 325,839
Remaining unassigned 817,909 - - - - - 817,909
Total unassigned 1,143,748 - - - - - 1,143,748
Total $ 1,238,660 $ 224,694 $ 1451,799 § 197,400 $ 1220 $ 13,557 § 3427,330

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District's Minimum Fund
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less
than 5 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9-POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A. Plan Description

The Sausalito Marin City School District’s defined benefit OPEB plan administered by Sausalito Marin City
School District. The Plan is a single employer defined benefit plan administered by the district. The District
currently provides retiree health benefits to eligible Certificated and Classified employees. Eligibility
requirements vary by employee classification.

B. Benefits Provided

At retirement and with at least 55 years of age and 15 years service, Classified employees are subject to a District-
paid contribution equivalent to the employee only rate (medical, dental and vision), up to the earlier of 2 years
or 65.

Upon retirement, Certificated employees are eligible for District-paid health benefits at retirement if they are at
least 55 years of age and have 13 years District service. Certificated employees can customize a retirement benefit
plan with the District. For the purposes of the valuation, we have assumed the active Certificated members agree
at retirement to the employee only rate (medical, dental, and vision) up to the earlier of 2 years or 65 (same as
Classified).

Spouse and survivor benefits are not available. The District prorates benefits for part timers, and a minimum
FTE of 0.5 is required to be eligible for retiree health benefits.

C. Contributions
The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Sausalito Marin City School District are established and
may be amended by the Sausalito Marin City School District and the Teachers’ Association and the local
California Service Employees Association. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in

paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

D. Plan Membership

Membership of the Plan consisted of the following:

Number of

participants
Inactive employees receiving benefits 3
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits* -
Participating active employees 26
Total number of participants** 29

*Information not provided
**As of the June 30, 2018 valuation date
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

E. Total OPEB Liability

The Sausalito Marin City School District’s total OPEB liability of $367,336 was measured as of June 30, 2018 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

F. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise specified:

Economic assumptions:
Salary increases 3.00%
Investment rate of return 4.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates ~ 6.00%

Non-economic assumptions:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or Females, as
appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant
Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during
the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. The actuary assumed contributions would be
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed thirty years.

H. Changes in Total OPEB Liability

June 30, 2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost $ 31,419
Interest on total OPEB liability 12,647
Benefits payments (61,700)
Net change in total OPEB liability (7,634)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 374,970
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 367,336
Covered payroll $ 2,483,735

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 15%

The Sausalito Marin City School District has invoked Paragraph 244 of GASB Statement 75 for the transition due

to cost constraints. Consequently, in order to determine the beginning total OPEB liability, a “roll-back”
technique has been used.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

I. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Sausalito Marin City School District, as well as what the
District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point
lower (2.62 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.62 percent) than the current discount rate:

Valuation
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.62%) (3.62%) (4.62%)
Total OPEB liability $ 393,653 % 367,336 % 343,399 -

J. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Sausalito Marin City School District, as well as what the
District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one
percentage point lower (5.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (7.00 percent) than the current healthcare
cost trend rate:

Valuation Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)
Total OPEB liability $ 336,676  $ 367,336 % 400,592

K. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Sausalito Marin City School District recognized OPEB expense of
$(7,634).

Prior periods of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources were not restated due to the fact that prior
valuations were not rerun in accordance with Paragraph 244 of GASB Statement 75. It was determined the time
and expense necessary to rerun prior valuations and to restate prior financial statements was not justified. In the
future, gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability will be recognized in OPEB expense
systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or
loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending
on the source of gain or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized on a straight-
line basis over five years. All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected
remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the
beginning of the measurement period.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies of
the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).
The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of
resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows:

Deferred Deferred inflows
Net pension outflows related related to
liability to pensions pensions Pension expense
STRS Pension $ 2,378,510 $ 658,551 $ 712,123 $ 120,561
PERS Pension 1,730,900 559,282 147,921 301,645
Total $ 4,109,410 $ 1,217,833 $ 860,044 $ 422,206

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues
a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 Folsom Blvd.,
Sacramento, CA 95826.

Benefits Provided
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas:

1.

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements
after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 30
years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, known
as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation.

CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be creditable
to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five
years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each
year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after
age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Contributions

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 10.25% and 9.205% of their salary
for fiscal year 2018, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers'
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 was 14.43% of annual payroll.
The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan
from the District were $209,108 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

On-Behalf Payments
The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12
education. These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $114,415 to CalSTRS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred OQutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District
as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net
pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 2,378,510

State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District 1,407,118
Total $ 3,785,628

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016
and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District's
proportion was 0.003 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 ~ PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $120,561. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $40,442 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2018, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ - $ 63,346
Differences between expected and
actual experience 8,796 41,485
Changes in assumptions 440,647
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions ) - 607,292
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 209,108 -
$ 658,551 $ 712,123

The $209,108 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2019 $ 74,907 $ 180,781
2020 74,907 88,213
2021 74,907 122,382
2022 74,907 184,446
2023 74,907 102,272
2024 74,908 34,029

$ 449,443 $ 712,123
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June
30,2016, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Investment Rate of Return* 7.10%
Wage Inflation 3.50%

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are based on MP-2016 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience. '

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2010~June 30, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting
Alliance-PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by
the board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future valuation,
CalSTRS consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most
current capital market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the
assumed asset allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2017, are summarized in the
following table:

Assumed Long-Term
Asset Class Asset Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return*
Global Equity 47% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12% 0.30%
Real Estate 13% 5.20%
Private Equity 13% 9.30%
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigating Strategies 9% 2.90%
Inflation Sensitive 4% 3.80%
Cash/Liquidity 2% -1.00%

100%

*20-year geometric average
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Discount Rate :

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming
that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions,
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate - Increase
(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 3,492,408 $ 2,378,510 $ 1,474,507

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS
financial report.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office,
400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95811.

Benefits Provided

The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and
benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries.
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.

Contributions

Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their
salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into
the plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 6.5% of their salary.
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from
paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution
is specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.

The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 was 15.531% of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the District
were $160,271 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $1,730,900 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2016 and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30,
2017, the District’s proportion was 0.007 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June
30, 2016.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $301,645. At June 30, 2018, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments $ 59877  § -
Differences between expected and

actual experience 62,011 -
Changes in assumptions 252,825 20,379
Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and

proportionate share of contributions : 24,298 127,542
District contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 160,271 -

$ 559,282 $ 147,921

The $160,271 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

) Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2019 $ 142,986  $ 107,042
2020 169,695 33,136
2021 119,119 7,743
2022 (32,789) -

$ 399,011  § 147,921
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

B.

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2016, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Discount Rate 7.15%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds. The table includes 20 years of mortality
improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term
expected rate of return, both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected
pension fund cash flows were taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members
and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equwalent rate calculated above and adjusted to
account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table on the next page reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was

calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employvees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) {continued)

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10% Years 11+**
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Assets 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

100.0%

*An expected inflation of 2.50% used for this period.
**An expected inflation of 3.00% used for this period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection of the expected
benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the
assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool.
The results of the crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained
at CalPERS’ website.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,546,709 $ 1,730,900 $ 1,054,119

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial report.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Granis

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in
the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position
of the District at June 30, 2018.

B. Litigation

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation pending is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2018.

C. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2018, the District had no commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects.

NOTE 12 - PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES

The District participates in two joint ventures under joint powers authorities (JPAs), the Marin Schools Insurance
Authority (MSIA) for workers’ compensation and property and liability, and the Marin Pupils Transportation
Agency (MPTA). The relationships between the District and the JPAs are such that the JPAs are not component units
of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPAs have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units, and their financial
statements are not presented in these financial statements. However, fund transactions between the JPAs and the
District are included in these statements. The audited financial statements are generally available from the respective
entities.

NOTE 13 - CHARTER SCHOOL

In accordance with Education Code Section 47605, the District approved a charter school agreement with Willow
Creek Academy Charter School, which was renewed for additional five years for the period July 1, 2015 through June
30, 2019.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 14 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
A. Refunded Debt

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the
District recognized deferred outflows or inflows of resources in the District-wide financial statements. The
deferred outflow of resources pertains to the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its
reacquisition price (deferred amount on refunding). Previous financial reporting standards require this to be
presented as part of the District’s long-term debt. This deferred outflow of resources is recognized as a
component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the
new debt, whichever is shorter. At June 30, 2018, the deferred amount on refunding was $1,193,532.

B. Pension Plans

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the District recognized
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in the
District-wide financial statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources can be found at Note 10. At June 30, 2018, total deferred outflows related to
pensions was $1,217,833 and total deferred inflows related to pensions was $860,044.

NOTE 15- RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The beginning net position of Governmental Activities has been restated in order to record the District’s total OPEB
liability, deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The effect on beginning net position is presented
as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Net Position - Beginning, as Previously Reported $ 2,629,955
Restatement (320,979)
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated $ 2,308,976

NOTE 16~ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 11, 2018, the California Department of Justice has determined that the District violated and has
continued to violate the California Constitution and anti-discrimination laws with respect to the establishment and
operation of Bayside-Martin Luther King, Jr. Academy ("Bayside MLK Academy"). They have concluded that
Bayside MLK Academy is presently a racially segregated school, and that the District possesses the facilities and
resources to operate a non-segregated school. The Attorney General has requested a meeting with the district on
December 21, 2018 to discuss the steps they will require the district to remedy the segregated and discriminatory
conditions described.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Services and other operating expenditures
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Actual* Variances -
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Final to Actual
$ 4,504,026 % 4,422,740 % 4479275 % 56,535
332,465 319,864 314,949 (4,915)
180,727 395,584 373,868 (21,716)
560,004 720,197 717,793 (2,404)
5,577,222 5,858,385 5,885,885 27,500
1,829,396 1,781,346 1,723,828 57,518
1,010,278 1,000,487 1,023,256 (22,769)
1,022,328 1,082,316 1,045,974 36,342
123,917 157,764 135,592 22,172
1,164,179 1,622,519 1,526,507 96,012
604,244 499,694 652,874 (153,180)
5,754,342 6,144,126 6,108,031 36,095
(177,120) (285,741) (222,146) 63,595
- 174,010 313,695 139,685
(330,579) (397,455) (408,729) (11,274)
(330,579) (223 ,445) (95,034) 128,411
(507,6%9) (509,186) (317,180) 192,006
1,555,840 1,555,840 1,555,840 -
$ 1,048,141 $ 1,046,654 $ 1,238,660 5 192,006

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons:

e Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts
on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay
Projects in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 31,419
Interest on total OPEB liability 12,647
Benefits payments (51,700)
Net change in total OPEB liability (7,634)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 374,970
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 367,336
Covered payroll $ 2,483,735
District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 15%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
- CALSTRS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 39, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.003% 0.003% 0.003% 0.004%
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 2,378,510 % 2335077 % 2,330,126  §$ 2,162,169
State’s proportionate share of the net pension

liability associated with the District 1,407,118 1,329,514 1,232,377 51,188

Total $ 3,785,628  § 3664591 § 3,562,503 % 2,213,357

District's covered payroll $ 1,446,288 % 1,606,441 $ 1,629,127 % 1,629,127
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 164.5% 1454% 143.0% 132.7%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 69.5% 70.0% 74.0% 76.5%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

96 84 130



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
- CALPERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.007% 0.007% 0.008% 0.007%
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 1,730,900 $ 1,408,070 $ 1,172,184 $ 828,728
District's covered payroll $ 922,874 $ 880,401 $ 763,206 $ 763,206
District’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

ofits covered payroll 187.6% 159.9% 153.6% 108.6%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 71.9% 73.9% 79.4% 83.4%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 209,108 $ 173,712 $ 152,515 139,115
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution* (209,108) (173,712) (152,515) (139,115)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - -
District's covered payroll $ 1453517 § 1,446,288  § 1,606,441 1,629,127
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 14.39% 12.01% 9.49% 8.54%

*Amounts do not include on-behalf contributions

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 160,271 $ 128,167 $ 101,073 $ 103,996
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (160,271) (128,167) (101,073) (103,996)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % -8 - $ -
District's covered payroll $ 1,030,218 $ 922,874 $ 880,401 $ 763,206
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 15.56% 13.89% 11.48% 13.63%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General
Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary comparison
schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period as well as (c)
actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to report the
variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 75 for all sole and agent employers that provide other

postemployment benefits (OPEB). Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years
under which GASB Statement No. 75 was applicable. The schedule presents the sources of change in the total OPEB
liability, and the components of the total OPEB liability and related ratios, including the total OPEB liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the District's
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered payroll, the District's
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered payroll,
and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of tle total pension liability.

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS.

Changes in Assumptions

The CalSTRS pian rate of investment return assumption was changed from 7.60 percent to 7.10 percent since the
previous valuation. The CalPERS plan rate of investment return assumption was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15
percent since the previous valuation.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (continued)

Schedule of District Contributions

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District’s statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the amount of
contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount
of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the District’s covered payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in
relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the District’s covered
payroll.

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual
major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code as follows:

Expenditures and Other Uses

Budget Actual Excess
General Fund
Classified salaries $ 1,000,487 % 1,023256 $ 22,769
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs $ 499,694 $ 652,874 % 153,180
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 2018

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
F89D9A46 CA8B2F0C
SCHOOL DISTRICT
TK/K through Third
Regular ADA 62.64 63.05
Special Education - Nonpublic Schools - 0.10
Total TK/K through Third 62,64 63.15
Fourth through Sixth
Regular ADA 3193 32.62
Total Fourth through Sixth 31.93 32.62
Seventh through Eighth
Regular ADA 19.89 19.82
Total Seventh through Eighth 19.89 19.82
TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 114.46 115.59

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2017-18
Minutes Actual Number

Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Status

Kindergarten 36,000 49,390 180 Complied
Grade1 50,400 58,840 180 Complied
Grade2 50,400 58,840 180 Complied
Grade 3 50,400 58,840 180 Complied
Grade4 54,000 60,865 180 Complied
Gradeb5 54,000 60,865 180 Complied
Grade 6 54,000 60,865 180 Complied
Grade?7 54,000 60,865 180 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 60,865 180 Complied

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2019 (Budget) 2018 2017 2016

General Fund - Budgetary Basis*™*

Revenues And Other Financing Sources $ 5,863,359 § 6,199,580 §$ 5,901,096 $ 5,697,760

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 6,570,890 6,516,760 6,202,951 5,527,347
Net change in Fund Balance $ (707,531) $ (317,180) $ (301,855) $ 170,413
Ending Fund Balance $ 531,129 $ 1,238,660 §$ 1,555,840 $ 2,030,885
Available Reserves* $ 445,180 §$ 1,143,748 $ 1,275,008 % 1,798,516
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Qutgo 6.78% 17.55% 20.55% 32.54%
Long-term Debt $ 23,831,456 $ 24,161,501 §$ 24,782,707 $ 24,885,258
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 116 114 148 136

The General Fund balance has decreased by $792,225 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2018-19 budget projects
a further decrease of $707,531. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 5% of
General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2018-19 fiscal year. Total long-term obligations have decreased by $723,757 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 22 ADA over the past two years. An increase of 2 ADA is anticipated
during the 2018-19 fiscal year.

*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund.

*The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects, in
accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There were no amounts to reconcile the annual financial and budget report with audited financial statements.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Included in
Charter # Charter School Status Audit Report
0351 Willow Creek Academy Active No

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2018
Deferred Capital Projects Debt Service Fund ~ Non-Major
Maintenance  Fund for Blended for Blended Governmental
Cafeteria Fund Fund Component Units Component Units Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 18,638 $ 13,464 22 25 32,149
Accounts receivable 12,346 - - - 12,346
Total Assets $ 30984 § 13,464 22 25 44,495
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 7,268 $ - - - 7,268
Due to other funds 23,670 - - - 23,670
Total Liabilities 30,938 - - - 30,938
FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable 40 - - - 40
Restricted 6 - 22 25 53
Committed - 13,464 - - 13,464
Total Fund Balances 46 13,464 22 25 13,557
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance _ $ 30,984 $ 13,464 22 25 44,495

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current
Pupil services
Food services
Plant services
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Net Financing Sources (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Deferred Capital Projects Debt Service Fund ~ Non-Major
Maintenance  Fund for Blended for Blended Governmental
Cafeteria Fund Fund Component Units Component Units Funds

-8 25,000 $ - -8 25,000

50,536 - - - 50,536
3274 - - - 3274
1,106 6,678 - - 7,784
54,916 31,678 - - 86,594
211,240 - - - 211,240
- 31,510 - - 31,510
211,240 31,510 - - 242,750
(156,324) 168 - - (156,156)
156,330 - - - 156,330
156,330 - - - 156,330
6 168 - - 174

40 13,296 22 25 13,383

46 8 13464 $ 22 25§ 13,557

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30, 2018

The Sausalito Marin City School District comprises and serves the City of Sausalito, Marin City, and several military
installations. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year. The District currently
operates one elementary school serving students in kindergarten through grade eight.

GOVERNING BOARD
Member Office Term Expires
Joshua Barrow President December 2018
Ida Green Vice President December 2018
Debra Turner Clerk December 2020
Caroline Van Alst Trustee December 2020
Thomas Newmeyer Trustee December 2018

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS

Terena Mares
Interim Superintendent

Amy Prescott
Interim Chief Business Official

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at
various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the
District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended June 30,
2018, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2018, the District had not
yet met its target funding.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget

information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual

Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Charter Schools
This schedule lists all Charter Schools chartered by the District and displays information for each Charter School on
whether or not the Charter School is included in the District audit.

Combining Statements — Non-Major Funds

These statements provide information on the District’s non-major funds.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the governing
board, and members of the administration.
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A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Sausalito Marin City School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Sausalito
Marin City School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 14, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sausalito
Marin City School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Sausalito Marin City School District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sausalito Marin City School
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sausalito Marin City School District's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

San Diego, California
December 14, 2018
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A F’ROFESS!ONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Sausalito Marin City School District’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of
Regulations, section 19810. that could have a direct and material effect on each of Sausalito
Marin City School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, as identified
below.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sausalito Marin City
School District's state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations,
section 19810. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state
programs noted below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the
requirements referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Sausalito Marin City School District complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state
programs noted in the table below for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Procedures Performed

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine.
Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following

items:

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study No
Continuation Education Not Applicable
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not Applicable
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
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PROCEDURES

PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Attendance; for charter schools Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;

for charter schools Not Applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable

Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based; for
charter schools
Charter School Facility Grant Program

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

We did not perform testing for Independent Study because the ADA was not material.

San Diego, California
December 14, 2018
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? None Reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS

The District was not subject to Uniform Guidance Single Audit for the year ended
June 30, 2018 because federal award expenditures did not exceed $750,000.

STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? None Reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
10000 Attendance
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities Programs
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card

There were no State findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING #2017-001: BANK ACCOUNTS AND RECONCILIATIONS (30000)

Criteria: Internal controls over bank accounts and reconciliations are important to ensure that the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement. Ensuring that bank reconciliations are prepared timely is an effective internal control for detecting accounting and banking errors and for
identifying fraudulent transactions originating from outside the local government.

Condition: During our testing of the District’s bank accounts and reconciliations, it was noted that the District’s Cash with Fiscal Agent did not reconcile from
the District’s general ledger to the supporting documentation. The amount of the discrepancy was not material to the financial statements.

Questioned Cost: The total variance is $60,599.
Cause: Lack of oversight over District Cash with Fiscal Agent reconciliation.

Perspective/Context: During our audit we conduct substantive tests, which include verifying amounts to Bank Statements, overall all District cash balances
recoded in the general ledger.

Effect: Risk of material misstatement.
Recommendation: Sound internal controls and oversight should be put into place to review all activity related to the District’s Cash with Fiscal Agent.

District Response: The District will properly reconcile the cash with a fiscal agent and balance to the approved balance on a monthly basis. The District will
also prepare written procedures to ensure that when District staff changes, proper procedures for timely reconciliation continue.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING #2017-002: CASH DISBURSEMENTS —~ PURCHASE ORDERS (30000)

Criteria: Proper internal controls require adequate segregation of duties, prior approval of the expenditure and sufficient supporting documentation such as
a vendor invoice. Prior approval is necessary to ensure that expenditures are appropriate uses of the fund and to ensure that expenses are being properly
budgeted.

Condition: During the review of internal controls over cash disbursements, 4 of the 25 cash disbursements were not properly approved. In addition, one of
the disbursements not properly approved, in the amount of $108,421, was for the demolition of the old District office. Public Contract Code (PCC) Section
20111(a) requires school district governing boards to competitively bid and award any contracts involving an expenditure of more than $50,000, adjusted for
inflation, to the lowest responsible bidder.

Questioned Cost: None.

Prospective/Context: Review of cash disbursements including contracts to test for proper internal controls.

Effect: Without prior approval of the expenditures, it could lead to budgeting issues in the future and misuse of the funds.

Cause: Controls over the Districts purchasing process are not properly implemented.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement procedures to ensure that all disbursements are properly approved and comply with Public
Contract Code.

District Response: Due to the circumstances of the fire and the need to mitigate the damage caused by the fire it was understood that the situation met the
requirements to be declared an emergency. Therefore, a non-competitive contract was approved by the District, but not formalized by the board.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING £2017-003: ADMINSTRATIVE TEACHER RATIO (40000)

Criteria: In accordance with Education Code Section 41402, the maximum ratio of administrative employees to each 100 teachers in an elementary school
district shall be 9.

Condition: The District had an excess of 1.39 FTE for administrators in fiscal year 2016-17.

Cause: The District was not able to adjust their Administrative FTEs during the 2016-17 fiscal year.

Effect: The District did not comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 41402.

Perspective/Context: We reviewed the state provided admin teacher ratio, calculation and supporting documents.

Questioned Cost: The questioned costs are the estimated penalty of $49,309. The estimated penalty, in accordance with Education Code Section 41404 was
calculated using the California Department of Education Employee Ratio Worksheet. The District’s Total State Revenue was divided by the District’s Total
Revenue and Other Financing Sources (§1,759,594 / $5,747,390 = 0.31) Total Annual Salaries of administrators was divided by the Administrator FTE ($418,757
/ 2.6 FTE = $161,060 average administrator salary). The average administrator salary was multiplied by the State Funded Share of Administrator Salary

($161,060 x 0.31 = $49,309). Then the penalty was multiplied by the rounded excess administrator FTE ($49,309 x 1 FTE = $49,309).

Recommendations: The District should review Administrative and Teacher FTEs to ensure they are in compliance with the requirements of Education Code
Section 41402.

District Response: It was anticipated that the District, in the current year 2016-2017, continued to exceed the allowable maximum ratio of administrators to
teachers. For the 2017-2018 school year, the District will review this ratio and make the necessary adjustments in administrative staffing to be in compliance
of Education Code 41402.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING #2017-004: AFTER SCHOOL EDUCATION AND SAFETY PROGRAM (40000)

Criteria: Per California Education Code Section 8483(a)(4), it is the intent of the legislature that that pupils in elementary school participate in the full day of
the program every day during which pupils participate to accomplish program goals. In addition, every program shall establish a policy regarding reasonable
early release of pupils to the program.

Condition: Through site attendance testing performed at the ASES site, it was noted that early release forms are not properly maintained at each respective
site. While a specific early release policy is set in place by the District, it does not appear that the ASES program is adequately monitoring and enforcing the

policy.

Perspective/Context: We sampled and tested the After School Education and Safety Program at both school sites. Ten (10) of twenty (20) students did not
have an early release policy of file during December 5 to December 9.

Questioned Costs: None. The misstaternents noted did not cause the District to fall below the 85% attendance threshold and would therefore result in no
questioned costs.

Cause: Sites are not completing early release forms due to change in supervisors and negligence in enforcing their policy when students leave the program
early.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with State requirements involving the ASES program.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District continue to provide oversight and training to staff in regard to the importance of having a documented
early release policy and ensuring that a signed copy is maintained for each child in the program.

District Response: District recognizes that there is an issue with retaining the early release polices in the ASES program. The District is working with the
Site Administrators to resolve the issue and develop a written policy and procedure that is intended to mitigate this problem. The District will be

responsible for the ongoing monitoring and supervision of the ASES program.

Current Status: Implemented.

82

125 of 130



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING #2017-005- UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000)

Criteria: Students classified as free or reduced price meal eligible (FRPM) (who are not directly certified) on the CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster
Youth - Student List Report must have supporting documentation that indicates the student was eligible for the determination. Auditors are required to
verify compliance with Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(3)(b) in Section W of the 2016-17 Guide for Annunl Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. §

Condition: 2 of 8 students tested from the CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth - Student List Report who was classified as FRPM did not
have proper supporting documentation to support their designation. A total of 8 students made up the entire population for the FRPM students who are not
directly certified and non English Language learners.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with State requirements.

Perspective/Context: We tested a 100% of FRPM students who are not directly certified students.

Cause: Clerical oversight.

Questioned Costs: The District received funding under the Basic Aid provision and did not receive either supplemental or concentration grant funding in
fiscal year 2016-17, therefore there is no fiscal impact.

Y
Unduplicated
Pupil Count

Bayside Martin LutherKing Jjr. 130
NPS School Group 1
Centified Pupil Counts 131
Bayside Martin LutherKing Jr. (2)

NPS School Group -
Audit Adjustments {2)
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. 128
NPS School Group 1
Audited Pupil Counts 129
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING #2017-005-~ UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000}, continued

Recommendation: We recommend that all household income documentation be reviewed and obtained for accurate CALPADS reporting.

District Response: Student data which includes Free and Reduced Price Meal Status (FRPM) is reported to CALPADS based on data as of the CBEDS date
which occurs annually on the first Wednesday in October. Verification of income as required by federal regulations must be completed annually by November
10. CALPADS guidelines require students FRPM status to be changed for students selected to verify income, and who fail to meet the deadline. Student data
is compiled for all other student reporting as of the CBEDS date, except for FRPM reporting which must be revised even though the students were legally
receiving FRPM as of the CBEDS date. The FRPM data base maintained by the Food Service Department must accurately reflect the date changes in status
for each student. Therefore, the data between the two systems will be different as of the CBEDS date.

In future reporting periods, the District will manually adjust the data uploaded to CALPADS for the December certification to comply with CALPADS
requirements for FRPM data.

Current Status: Implemented.
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 15.05 Date: January 10, 2019
[l Correspondence [] Consent Agenda
[l Reports

[[1] General Functions

1 Pupil Services

X] Facilities

[] Personnel Services

[l Financial & Business Procedures

[1 Curriculum and Instruction

[] Policy Development

[l Public Hearings

ltem Requires Board Action: [X] Item is for Information Only: [ ]

ltem: Disposal of Surplus

Background: During the first round of cleanup in the Annex, there were additional items identified as
surplus:

2 — Nonfunctional refrigerators, miscellaneous defunct steel case filing cabinets, and a dozen various
lengths of steel/aluminum piping.

Addresses LCAP Goal(s)/Action(s): N/A
Fiscal Impact: None

Recommendation: Declare items as surplus

128 of 130



Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 15.06 Date: January 10, 2019

0 I =

Correspondence [l Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

ltem Requires Board Action: X ltem is for Information Only: [ |

ltem: Superintendent’s 2018-19 Goals

Background: For the 2018-19 school year, the Board has contracted with the Marin County Office
of Education for Interim Superintendent services. During the remainder of the 2018-19 school year,
the following goals are proposed:

Successfully finalize the next Memorandum of Understanding with Willow Creek Academy
Complete a Facilities Maintenance Needs Analysis

Issue and complete the process for selecting a consultant to conduct a Facilities Master Plan
Prepare an analysis and recommendation for reducing the Food Service encroachment on the
General Fund

Prepare an analysis of the current after school program including a recommendation for
reducing the General Fund encroachment

Prepare a recommendation to restructure the District Office staffing needs

Successfully complete the 2018-19 negotiations with the California School Employees
Association Chapter #394

Provide an analysis and recommendation for the district’s special education program if WCA
joins another SELPA

Explore Summer School options

Update Emergency Preparedness plans

Support process of working with the Attorney General

Addresses LCAP Goal(s)/Action(s): N/A

Fiscal Impact. N/A

Recommendation: Provide direction and input on Superintendent Goals

129 of 130



Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 17.01 Date: January 10, 2019

]

Correspondence ] Consent Agenda
<] Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Facilities

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

| | O

ltem Requires Board Action: [] ltem is for Information Only: X

Item: Policy Updates

Background: During the 2017-18 school year, the district engaged the California School Boards
Association (CSBA) to conduct a thorough review of its policies. In December the district received its
policy updates. Subsequently, the board adopted a calendar review timeline. Upon review of the time
necessary for board policy review, it is administrations recommendation to assign the task of policy
review to a board subcommittee. Consequently, for this meeting there are no policies set forth for a
first read.

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Recommendation: Information Only. Consider delegating review of policy updates to board
subcommittee
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